INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Chandra CFS and Terminal Operators Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Chandra CFS and Terminal
Operators Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its profit/loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the “Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. It, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board ot Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these [nd AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section [43(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. it such disclosures ar
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained u




the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure |7 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ot our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by faw have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement ot Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies ([ndian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 trom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS tinancial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2° to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule I'l of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which WOUld,l,l;E
position; il




S.R. BarLiBoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ili.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

ol
! Wl

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 96766
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 13, 2019




Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date

Re: Chandra CFS and Terminal Operators Private Limited (‘the Company’)

iil.

Vi,

VII.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held in the
name of the company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section [89 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance ot Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products/services of the Company.

a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax,
duty of custom, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.




Viil.

XI.

X11.

X111

XIV.

XV.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not detaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution,
bank as at balance sheet date. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from
Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term
loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud on the
company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act. 2013.




S.R. BAatrLiBoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
xvi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of

the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batlibei & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 96766
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 13,2019




ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Chandra CFS and Terminal
Operators Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 20 3.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating eftectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements




S.R. BatLiBoI1 & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountanis
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 96766
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 13, 2019




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2019
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Notes
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,866.09 2,032.32
Capital work-in-progress 3 -

i. Other financial assets 5 149.72 129.78
Deferred tax assets (net) 19¢ - -
Income tax assets (net) 7 26.70 31.92
Total non-current assets 2,042.51 2,194.02
Current assets
Financial assets

1. Trade receivables 4(a) 126.37 121,62

il. Cash and cash equivalents 4(b) 30.81 67.43

iv. Other financial assets 5 9.12 4.98
Other current assets 6 36.59 12.75
Total current assets 202.89 206.78
Total assets 2,245.40 2,400.80
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 8(a) 3,583.95 3,583.95
Other equity
Reserves and Surplus 8(b) (1,653.92) (1,590.91)
Total equity 1,030.03 1,993.04
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Borrowings 9(a) 141.77 190.70
Employee Benefit Obligations 11 24.40 21,38
Deferred tax liabilities 19¢ - -
Total non-current liabilities 166.17 212.08
Current liabilities
Financial Habilities

i. Trade payables

- Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 9(b) - -

- Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and

Small Enterprises a(b) 86.75 63.30

ii. Other financial liabilities 9(c) 50.06 112,55
Employee Benefit Obligations 11 4.85 4.75
Other current liabilities 10 7.54 15.08
Total current liabilities 149.20 195.68
Total liabilities 315.37 407.76
Total equities and liabilities 2,245.40 2,400.80

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

A P
?~JWW A

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership No.: 96766

™

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chandra CFS and Terminal Operators Pvt Ltd.

/" ‘\_,L./{.N *
Prem Kishan Dass Gupta -/Shabbir Hassanbhai
Chairman Director
DIN: 00011670 DIN: OW

. Kumar Anuj Kalia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended

Year ended

Notes 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Continuing Operations
Revenue from operations 12 885.61 818.90
Other income 13 14.17 8.27
Total Income 899.78 827.17
Expenses
Operating expenses 14 462.17 397.33
Employee benefit expense 15 107.68 93.26
Depreciation and amortisation expense 16 172.51 171.59
Other expenses 17 197.80 232.50
Finance costs 18 21.79 30.00
Total expenses 961.95 924.68
Loss before exceptional items and tax (62.17) (97.51)
Exceptional items - -
Loss before tax (62.17) (97.51)
Income tax expense
-Current tax - -
-Deferred tax - -

Total tax expense - -
Loss for the year (62.17) (97.51)
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 11 (0.84) 1.26

Income tax relating to the above 11 - -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (0.84) 1.26
Total comprehensive loss for the year (63.01) (96.25)
Earnings per equity share for profit from continuing
operation attributable to owners of Chandra CFS And
Terminal Operators Private Limited
Basic earnings per share 27 (1.76) (2.69)
Diluted earnings per share 27 (1.76) (2.69)

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

8 V/f

[
per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership No.: 96766

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chandra CFS and Terminal Operators Pvt Ltd.

~
AOCU~ [ L b

éhabbir Hassanbhai

Director
DIN: 00268133

s

Anuj Kalia
Company Secretary

Prem Kishan Dass Gupta
Chairman
DIN: 00011670

~ - R. Kumar
Chief Financial Officer




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless-otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A Cash Flow from operating activities

Loss before Income Tax (62.17) (97.51)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 172.51 171.59
Finance costs 18 21.79 30.00
Loss on sale/ disposal of property, plant and equipments - 0.13
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks 13 (9.99) (8.27)
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back 13 (4.18) -
Increase/(Decrease) in provision for doubtful debts 17 (14.09) 36.60
Increase/(Decrease) Provision for Doubtful Ground Rent 17 - 3.44
Change in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (18.84) 50.31

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 19.81 (5.45)

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (23.83) 1.76

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 23.46 (78.71)

Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (0.01) 0.01

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities (7.55) 11.15

Increase/(decrease) in employee benefit liability 3.95 1.58
Cash generated from operations 100.86 116.63

Income taxes paid (5.22) (13.01)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 95.64 103.61
Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets (6.28) (137.50)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 1.24

Interest received 7.23 8.06
Net cash outflow from Investing activities 0.95 (128.20)
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 102.01

Repayment of borrowings (110.84) (94.36)

Interest paid (22.37) (28.88)

Proceeds from issue of share capital 8(a) - 100.00
Net cash Inflow from financing activities (133.21) 78.77
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (36.62) 54.18
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 4(b) 67.43 13.25
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30.81 67.43




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flow

Cash Flow statement as per above comprises of the following 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Cash and cash equivalents 0.03 0.29
Current account with Banks 30.78 67.14
Balances as per statement of cash flows 30.81 67.43

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Chandra CFS and Terminal Operators Pvt Ltd.

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
/\f\mm ;

per Vishal Sharma Prem Kishan Dass Gupta Szabbir Hassanbhai
Partner Chairman Director
Membership No.: 96766 DIN: 00011670 DIN: 00268133
7 § \
it e
A/lﬁmar ‘ j Kalia

= Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2019



CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Background

Chandra CFS and Terminal Operators Private Limited (the 'Company’) is engaged in the business of
providing services of Container Freight Station ('CFS’). The CFS is located on the Nallur Village post,
Kammavari Pallayam Road, Minjur 601 203. The Company's primary business is to operate Container
Freight Stations ("CFS"), which are facilities set up for the purpose of in-transit container handling,
examination, assessment of cargo with respect to regulatory clearances, both import and export. CFS
provides common user facilities offering services for Container Handling, Transport and Storage of
import/ export laden and empty containers and cargo carried under customs control.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
13 May 2019.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of Preparation:

i. Compliance With Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared as a separate set of financial statement in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. (as amended from time to time).

ii. Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
-- Certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value;
-- Define benefit plan-plan assets measured at fair value; and
-- Assets held for sale-measured at lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to sell.

iii. Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

a. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

c. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b) Compound Financial Instrument

Compound financial instrument issued by the Company comprises of compulsorily redeemable non-
convertible preference shares. Compound financial instruments are split into separate equity and
liability components. The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have discretionary dividend feature/ off market
interest rate. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component is
initially recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a
whole and the fair value of the liability component. This is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently re-measured. Any directly attributable
transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial
carrying amounts.

Interest related to the liability component of compound instrument is recognised in statement of profit
or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an asset).

(c) Segment Reporting:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the company. The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Chairman and Managing Director of the company. The company has identified one reportable segment
“Container Freight Station” i.e. based on the information reviewed by CODM. Refer note 23 for segment
information presented.

(d) Foreign currency translation:

i. Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency'). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement of profit and loss, within finance cost. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the Statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost
are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation difference on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non- monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are
recognised in other comprehensive income.




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period. With
respect to long-term foreign currency monetary items, the Company has adopted the following policy:

Long Term foreign currency monetary item taken upto 31 March 2016 on depreciable assets:

Foreign exchange difference on account of long term foreign currency loan on a depreciable asset, are
adjusted in the cost of the depreciable asset, which would be depreciated over the balance life of the
asset.

Long Term foreign currency monetary item taken after o1 April 2016 on depreciable assets:
« Foreign exchange difference on account of a depreciable assets, are included in the Statement of profit
and Loss.

A monetary asset or liability is termed as a long-term foreign currency monetary item, if the asset or
liability is expressed in a foreign currency and has a term of 12 months or more at the date of origination
of the asset or liability.

(e) Revenue from contracts with customers
Company derives revenue from providing services of Container Freight Station ('CFS'). CFS provides
common user facilities offering services for Container Handling, Transport and Storage of import/
export laden and empty containers and cargo carried under customs control.
Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” provides a control-based revenue recognition
model and provides a five step application approach to be followed for revenue recognition.

o Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Identify the performance obligations

e Determine the transaction price

o Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

o  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation
'Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for those services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements, except for the agency services, because it typically controls the services before
transferring them to the customer.
Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties

Rendering of services
(i) Income from Container handling, storage and transportation are recognised on proportionate
completion of the movement and delivery of goods to the party/designated place.

(ii)Income from Ground Rent is recognised for the period the container is lying in the Container Freight
Station. However, in case of long standing containers, the income from Ground Rent is not accrued
for a period beyond 60 days as on the basis of past history the collectability is not reasonably assured.

(iii) Income from auction sales is recognised when the company auctions long-standing cargo that has
not been cleared by customs. Revenue and expenses for Auction sales are recognised when auction
is completed after obtaining necessary approvals from appropriate authorities. Auction sales
include recovery of the cost incurred in conducting auctions, accrued ground rent and handling
charges relating to long-standing cargo. Surplus, out of auctions, if any, after meeting all expenses
and the actual ground rent, is credited to a separate account 'Auction Surplus’ and is shown under
the head 'Other Current Liabilities'. Unclaimed Auction Surplus, if any, in excess of period specified
under the Limitations Act is written back as 'Tncome' in the following financial year.

Variable considerations

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the service to the customer. The variable

consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a /‘\f\)m e
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significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The Company
recognizes changes in the estimated amount of variable consideration in the period in which the
change occurs. Some contracts for the sale of service provide customers with volume rebates and
pricing incentives, which give rise to variable consideration.

The Company provides retrospective volume rebates and pricing incentives to certain customers once
the quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract.
Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration
for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount method for contracts
with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts with more than one
volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then
applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund
liability for the expected future rebates.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in section financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

Cost to obtain a contract

The Company pays sales commission to its selling agents for each contract that they obtain for the
Company. The Company has elected to apply the optional practical expedient for costs to obtain a
contract which allows the Company to immediately expense sales commissions (included in
advertisement and sales promotion expense under other expenses) because the amortization period of
the asset that the Company otherwise would have used is one year or less.

Costs to fulfil a contract i.e. freight, insurance and other selling expenses are recognized as an expense
in the period in which related revenue is recognised.

Critical judgements

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer service to the customers.
Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could
be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as
schemes, incentives, cash discounts, etc. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period.
Estimates of rebates and discounts are sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Company’s past
experience regarding returns and rebate entitlements may not be representative of customers’ actual
returns and rebate entitlements in the future.

Costs to obtain a contract are generally expensed as incurred. The assessment of this criteria requires
the application of judgement, in particular when considering if costs generate or enhance resources to
be used to satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered.

) Other revenue streams

Dividend
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.
Interest Income
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For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf
of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefit will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for the each of
the company activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specific of each arrangement.

e Income from Container handling and transportation are recognised on proportionate
completion of the movement and delivery of goods to the party/designated place.

e Income from Container Handling and Storage are recognised on the basis of percentage
completion of the activity on container/ cargo. Income from Ground Rent is recognised for the
period the container is lying in the Container Freight Station. However, in case of long standing
containers, Income from Ground Rent is not accrued for a period beyond 60 days on a
consistent basis as per the prevailing business practice.

e Income from auction is recognised when the company auctions long-standing cargo that has
not been cleared by customer. Revenue and expenses for Auction are recognised when auction
is completed after obtaining necessary approvals from appropriate authorities. Auction include
recovery of the cost incurred in conducting auctions, custom duties on long-standing cargo and
accrued ground rent and handling charges relating to long-standing cargo. Surplus, out of
auctions, if any, after meeting all expenses and the actual ground rent, is credited to a separate
account 'Auction Surplus’ and is shown under the head 'Other Current Liabilities'. Unclaimed
Auction Surplus, if any, in excess of period specified under the Limitations Act is written back
as 'Income’ in the following financial year.

(g) Income Tax:

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period where the company generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates position taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses. T
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Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for the temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements
where the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where
it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

MAT

“Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current
tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it
is probable that the concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the
period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company
recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as part of deferred tax asset. The company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each
reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal
tax during the specified period.”

(h) Leases:

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance
lease. Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases.

Operating Lease - as a lessee

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentive received from the lessor) are charged to
Statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected
inflationary cost increases.

(i) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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(j) Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdraft. Bank overdraft are shown within
borrowing in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

& Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

(1) Investments and other financial assets
() Classification

The Company classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories:

-- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through statement of profit and loss and

-- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For the assets measured at fair value, gain and losses will either be recorded in statement of profit and
loss or other comprehensive income. For investment in debt instrument, this will depends on the
business model in which the investment is held.

The group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition to the financial assets. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company's business model for managing
the asset and cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which
the Company classifies its debt instruments.

1. Amortised Cost:

Assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

2. Fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in statement of profit and loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest Income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.

3. Fair Value through profit or loss (FVPL):
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured as fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which it arises. Dividend income
from these financial assets is included in other income.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other
financial assets. The Company measures the ECL associated with its assets based on historical trend,
industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate
basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.

(iv)  De-recognition of financial assets

A financial assets is derecognised only when
-- The company has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets or

-- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay cash flows to one or more recipients.

When the entity has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownmership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
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derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial assetis derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

8% Income recognition

(1) Interest:
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding

and the effective interest rate.

(1) Dividend:
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

(m) Financial Liabilities
(1) Classification

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
-- those to be measured subsequently at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, and
-- those measured at amortised cost

(i) Measurement

1. Financial liabilities at amortised cost- Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by
borrowings, trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried
at amortized cost.

2. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss- Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

(iii) Reclassification of financial assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification classification
Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification

date.  Difference  between  previous
amortized cost and fair value is recognised
in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new gross carrying amount. EIR is
calculated based on the new gross carrying
amount.

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification
date.  Difference  between  previous
amortised cost and fair value is recognised
in OCIL. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.
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FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new amortised cost carrying amount.
However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently,
the asset is measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new carrying amount. No other
adjustment is required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified to P&L at
the reclassification date.

(n) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

(o) Property, Plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the company and cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
as a separate assets is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on additions/ deletions to Tangible and Intangible Assets is calculated on pro-rata basis
from the month of such additions/ deletions. The Company provides depreciation on straight-line

method at the rates specified under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except for:

- Reach Stackers and forklifts (included in Other Equipments) are depreciated over a period of ten years,
based on the technical evaluation;

- Additions/ construction of Building and Leasehold Improvement is being amortised over the balance
period of the lease period;

- Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition/
construction.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in statement of profit and loss.

(p) Intangible Assets
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Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost or fair value as of the date of acquisition, as applicable,
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. Intangible assets of the Company
consist of computer software and is amortised under straight line method over a period of three years.

(q) Trade and other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method.

(r) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cost)
and redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest rate method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify
the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

(s) Borrowing Cost:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(t) Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small. a2,
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Provision are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

(vw) Employee Benefits:
(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in Statement of profit and loss in respect of employees service up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(i1) Other long term employee benetfit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided
by employees up to the end of the repotting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits
are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligation.

Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Post employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

1. Defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
2. Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present
value of the defined obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflow by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of defined benefit
obligations and fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the
statement of profit and loss .

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustment and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution Plans

The company pays provident fund contribution to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Gv) Bonus Plan

The company recognise the liability and an expenses for bonus. The company recognise a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(v) Earnings per Share:
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

The Net profit or loss attributable to the owner of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity share outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in the determination of basis earnings per share to
take into account:

1) the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

2) the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(w) Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(x) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at
the end of the reporting period.

(z) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets
such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights
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An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the
balance sheet.

(aa) Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature
or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the Company for the year,
the nature and amount of such items is disclosed separately as Exceptional items.

(ac) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

(ad) Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been round off to the nearest lakhs as
per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated

(ae) New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of
adoption of these new accounting standards are described below. Several other amendments and
interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an impact on the financial
statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

) Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS
18 Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its
customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard
also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly
related to fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption. The change did
not have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption. The change did
not have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 20 government grant related to non-moneta
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The amendment clarifies that where the government grant related to asset, including non-monetary
grant at fair value, shall be presented in balance sheet either by setting up the grant as deferred income
or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset. Prior to the amendment, Ind
AS 20 did not allow the option to present asset related grant by deducting the grant from the carrying
amount of the asset. These amendments do not have any impact on the financial statements as the
Company continues to present grant relating to asset by setting up the grant as deferred income.

(iii) Amendment to Ind AS 38 Intangible asset acquired free of charge

The amendment clarifies that in some cases, an intangible asset may be acquired free of charge, or for
nominal consideration, by way of a government grant. In accordance with Ind AS 20 Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, an entity may choose to recognise both
the intangible asset and the grant initially at fair value. If an entity chooses not to recognise the asset
initially at fair value, the entity recognises the asset initially at a nominal amount plus any expenditure
that is directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. The amendment also clarifies that
revaluation model can be applied for asset which is received as government grant and measured at
nominal value. These amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(iv) Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Considerations

The appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related assef, expense or income (or part of it) on the de-recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the
date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. This Interpretation does
not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

8% Amendments to Ind AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change
in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and
there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. These amendments do not have any impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

i) Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable
profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets
for more than their carrying amount.
Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the
amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in
opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the
change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief
must disclose that fact.
These amendments do not have any impact on the Company as the Company has no deductible
temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

2. CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS:
The Preparation of financial statements require the use of accounting estimates which, by definition,

will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the
company's accounting policies.
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This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning
out to be different that those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation
for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

-- Estimation of Provisions & Contingent Liabilities

The Company exercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to
contingent liabilities which is related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims. Judgement is
necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to
quantify the possible range of the financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this
evaluation process, actual liability may be different from the originally estimated as provision. (Refer
Note 25)

-- Estimated useful life of tangible and intangible assets

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s
expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience
with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes
in technology. For the relative size of the Company’s intangible assets. (Refer Note 3 & 4)

-- Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for post employments plans include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of such obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate
that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be
required to settle the defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
Company considers the interest rates of government bonds of maturity approximating the terms of the
related plan liability. Refer note 11 for the details of the assumptions used in estimating the defined
benefit obligation. (Refer Note 11)

-- Impairment of trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit
risk has been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms
in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected
credit loss model to assess.the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix and
forward-looking information and an assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the financial
asset to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables.

-- Estimated fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Management uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

(A) Equity share capital

Notes Number of shares Amount
As at 1 April 2017 34.83 3,483.95
Increase in equity share capital 8(a) 1.00 100.00
As at 31 March 2018 35.83 3,583.95
Increase in equity share capital 8(a) - -
As at 31 March 2019 35.83 3,583.95
(B) Other Equity attributable to equity shareholders

Reserves and Surplus
Retained Earnings Total|

Balance as at 1 April 2017 (1,494.66) (1,494.66)
Loss for the year (97.51) (97.51)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax 1.26 1.26
Balance as at March 2018 (1,590.91) (1,590.91)
Balance as at 01 April 2018 (1,590.91) (1,590.91)
Loss for the year (62.17) (62.17)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (0.84) (0.84)
Balance as at March 2019 (1,653.92) (1,653.92)

The above Statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Financial assets

Note 4(a) Trade receivables

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Trade receivables 161.10 170.23
Receivables from related parties - -

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 34.73 48.61
Total receivables 126.37 121.62
Current Portion 126.37 121.62

Non Current Portion

Breakup of securities details

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 126.37 121.62
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (34.73) (48.61)
Less: Impairment for trade receivable” 34.73 48.61
Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
Total trade receivables 126.37 121,62

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either
severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or
a Private Company respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

*The provision for the impairment of trade receivables has been made basis the expected credit
loss method and other cases based on management judgement.

4(b) Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 30.78 67.14
Cash on hand 0.03 0.29
Total cash and cash equivalents 30.81 67.43
Note 5 Other financial assets
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

Interest accerued on deposits - 12.54 ~ 8.65
Margin money balances 127.36 110.09
Security and other deposits - 9.82 - 11.04
Accured Ground Rent Net
- Considered Good 9.12 - 4.98 -
-Considered Doubtful - 418

9.12 9.16
Less: Provision for Doubtful Ground Rent - (4.18)

9.12 - 4.98 -
Total other financial assets 9.12 149.72 4.98 129.78

Margin money consist of INR 127.36 Lakhs (31 March 2018

:INR 110.09 Lakhs) pledged with Custom Authorities.
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Note 6: Other assets

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Balances with statutory authorities 3.32 -
Prepaid expenses 33.26 12,75
Total other assets 36.59 12.75

Note 7: Income Tax Assets (Net)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Tax Deducted at Source 26.70 31.92
Total Current Tax Assets 26.70 31.92
Note 8: Equity share capital and other equity
8(a) Equity share capital
Authorised equity share capital

Number

of shares Amount
As at 31 March 2018-- Equity shares of Rs. 100 each 36.00 3,600.00
As at 31 March 2019-- Equity shares of Rs. 100 each 36.00 3,600.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up equity share capital

Number i

of shares Amount
As at 31 March 2018-- Equity shares of Rs. 100 each 35.84 3,583.95
As at 31 March 2019-- Equity shares of Rs. 100 each 35.84 3,583.95
(i) Movements in equity share capital

Number

of shares Equity share

capital (par value)

As at 1 April 2017 34.84 3,483.95
Change during the year 1.00 100.01
As at 31 March 2018 35.84 3,583.95
Change during the year - -
As at 31 March 2019 35.84 3,583.95

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 100 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share
held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting

except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the shareholders will be eligible to receive remaining assets of

the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(ii) Shares of the company held by holding/ultimate holding company

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

GATEWAY DISTRIPARKS LIMITED (immediate and 35.84 35.84
utlimate holding company)
(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of % holding Number of % holding
shares shares
GATEWAY DISTRIPARKS LIMITED 35.84 100% 35.84 100%
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8(b) Reserve and surplus

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Opening balance (1,590.91) (1,494.65)
Loss for the year (62.17) (97.51)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised

directly in retained earnings:

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax (0.84) 1.26
Closing Balance (1,653.92) (1,590.91)

Note 9: Financial liabilities

9(a) Borrowings
Non-current borrowings

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

From Banks

Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank 191.83 303.24
Total non-current borrowings 191.83 303.24
Less:Current maturities of long term debt 48.93 110.83
Less: Interest accrued (included in note 9(c)) 1.13 1.71
Non-Current borrowings 141.77 190.70
(a) Nature of Security:
Vehicle Finance Loan from HDFC Bank are secured by way of hypothecation of the Company's
Commercial Vehicles,
(b) Terms of Repayment:
Vehicle Finance Loan are repayable in 59 equal monthly instalments along with average interest
@ 9.23% p.a (31 March 2018 - 9.23% p.a.) on reducing monthly balance.
9(b) Trade payables

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Outstanding due of Micro Enterprise and Small
Enterprise (refer note 28) - -
Payable to others 86.75 63.30
Total trade payables 86.75 63.30

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in the range of 1 to 180 days terms.

For explanation in the company's credit risk management process, refer note 21.

9(¢) Other financial liabilities

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current maturities of Long-Term Borrowings 48.93 110.83
Interest accrued but not due 1.13 1.72
Total other current financial liabilities 50.06 112.55

Note 10: Other liabilities

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Advances received from customers 0.91 -
Statutory dues 6.63 15.08
Total other liabilities 7.54 15.08




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 11: Employee benefit obligations

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Compensated absences 0.88 5.86 0.88 5.99
Gratuity (Refer below) 0.95 18.54 0.79 15.39
Due to Employees 3.02 - 3.08 -
Total employee benefit obligations 4.85 24.40 4.75 21.38

(1) Leave Obligation
The leave obligation cover the company liabilty for sick and earned leave.

The amount of the provision of INR. 0.88 Lakhs (31 March 18 INR. 0.88 Lakhs) is presented as current, since the company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations.

(ii) Post employment benefit obligations

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in Indla as per payment of gratuity Act, 1972. Employee who are in continous service for a
period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement / termination is the employees last drawn basic
salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The Gratuity plan of the
company is unfunded.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC), which are defined contribution
plan, for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund
the benefits.. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive
obligtion. The expense recognised during the year towards providend fund and Esic is INR. 6.12 Lakhs (31 March 2018 INR. 5.56 Lakhs).

The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

(a) Balance sheet amount (Gratuity)

Present value of obligation

01-Apr-18 16.18
Current service cost 2.01
Interest expense/(income) 1.27
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 3.28
Remeasurements

(Gain )/loss from change in demographic assumptions

(Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions 0.51
Experience (gains)/losses 0.33
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.84
Employer contributions

Benefit payments (0.81)
31 March 2019 19.49

Present value of obligation

1 April 2017 14.56
Current service cost 2.12
Interest expense/(income) 1.09
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 3.21
Remeasurements

(Gain )/loss from change in demographic assumptions

(Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions (0.49)
Experience (gains)/losses (0.77)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (1.26)
Employer contributions

Benefit payments (0.33)

31 March 2018 16.18
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(b)

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Present value of un funded obligations 19.48 16.18
Fair value of plan assets -
Deficit of unfunded plan 19.48 16.18
Unfunded plans -
Deficit of gratuity plan 19.48 16.18

Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
(c¢) The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Discount rate 7.54% 7.82%
Atirition rate 5% 5%
Salary growth rate 8.25% 8.25%

(d) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discount rate 8.89% 10.49% 10.36% 8.09%
Salary growth rate 10.19% 10.35% 8.91% 0.04%
Afttrition rate 0.65% 0.44% 0.57% 0.39%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is
unlikely to oceur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

(e) Defined benefit liability and employers contributions
Expected contributions to post employment benefits for the year ended 31 March 2019 is NIL ( 31 March 2018 Nil ) for the unfunded plan.

() The weighted average duration of the projected benefit obligation is 11 years (31 March 2018- 11 years) for the unfunded plan. The
expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

(g) Unfunded

31-Mar-19 31 March 2018
1st Following Year 0.94 0.78
2nd Following Year 0.97 0.84
3rd Following Year 1.02 0.86
4th Following Year 1.41 0.90
5th Following Year 1.43 1.21
Sum of Years 6 To 10 10.34 8.31
Sum of Years 11 and above 31.95 29.28




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 12: Revenue from operations

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Container Handling, Transport, Storage and Ground 885.61 818.90
Rent income .
Revenue from operations 885.61 818.90

Note 13: Other income

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Interest income on deposits with banks 9.99 8.27
Write back of Provision for doubtful ground rent 4.18 -
Total other income 14.17 8.27

Note 14:Operating expenses

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Incentives, Discounts and Rebates 81.83 73.18
Transportation 54.63 55.85
Labour charges 29.41 29.42
Sub Contract Charges 296.30 238.88
Total operating expenses 462.17 397.33
Note 15: Employee benefit expense

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Salaries, wages, bonus, etc. 78.34 68.02
Contribution to provident and other funds 6.12 5.56
Leave compensation (refer note 11) 0.63 1.56
Gratutity (refer note 11) 3.28 3.21
Staff welfare expenses 19.31 14.01
Total 107.68 93.26
Note 16: Depreciation and amortisation expense

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (refer note 2) 172.51 171.59
Depreciation and amortisation expense 172.51 171.59




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 17: Other expenses

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Power and fuel 20.42 22,27
Rates and taxes 19.83 3.61
Repairs & Maintenance:

Building - -

Plant and machinery 37.61 11.57

Others - -
Insurance 19.15 16.76
Customs Cost Recovery 10.13 62.83
Printing and Stationery 0.80 0.74
Travelling expenses 10.82 12.28
Communication expenses 2.85 5.14
Security Charges 44.19 38.03
Professional charges 9.57 5.86
Audit Fees ( Refer Note 17(a) ) 5.42 2.50
Bad Debts 27.97 17.07
Provision for Doubtful debts (27.97) -

0.00
Provision for Doubtful debts 14.09 19.53
Provision for Doubtful Ground Rent - 3.44
Bank charges 1.00 1.24
Miscellaneous expenses 1.91 9.63
Total 197.80 232.50
17(a) Details of payments to auditors
31 March 2019 31-03-2018

Payment to auditors
As Auditors:

a) Audit fees 2.50 2.50

b) Limited Review 2.75 -
In other capacity:

Re-imbursement of expenses 0.17 -
Total 5.42 2.50
Note 18: Finance costs

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Interest on Vehicle Finance Loan 21.79 30.00
Total 21.79 30.00




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 19: Current and deferred tax

19(a) No aggregate amounts of current and deferred tax have arisen in the reporting periods,
which have not been recognised in net profit or loss or other comprehensive income but directly
debited/ (credited) to equity

19(b) Tax losses
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they may not be used to
offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Company

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation for 1,741.44 1,717.20
which no deferred tax asset has been recognised

Potential tax benefit @ 25.75%(31 March 2018- 25.75%) 448.42 442.18
As on 31 March 2019, the Company has business losses and unabsorbed depreciation which will

expire as follows:

Net operating losses

upto 2017 - -
2018 - 70.75
2020 77.26 77.26
2021 43.90 43.90
2024 160.77 160.77
Unabsorbed depreciation 1,459.52 1,364.53

< The space below has been left blank intentionally




§S'99¢€ - 09°843 - - SanIIqEr] [BloUBUL [BI0],
LT - [ - - senI[Iqel] [BIDURUY JOYIO
0€'¢9 - SL 08 - - so[qedAed apeiL
€6'10¢ - 04061 - - (senuIniew Jud.LIND UIpnour) sSuUMOoLIog
soniiqery [eoueul

18°€c¢ - T0°'91E - - $19SSV [RIOURUL [B10],
g6V - (X9 - - JUSLINY-S19SSE [RIDUBUY IS0
QL 68T - Tl 6b1 - - JUBLINY UON -SI9SSE [RIOURUL] 1910
et Lo - 18°0¢ - - JusTBAINDD YSB) pUE [SBD
29'IgT - L9zt - - 9[qeAIo09Y apel],
180)) pasn.owry IDOAA TdAA 1S00 pasnaowry  1DOAA  IdAdA S19SSY [eloUBUL

10T ‘IE Yoary 6102 ‘1€ Yore

"A1089180 Aq JUsUNIISUL [eIOURUL] (B) OF

SINFINHANSVAN HN'TVA AIVA

‘pouad Zunaodai [erouruly Jo pus Y] Je SE SAIH[IGRI] XB] PALISJOP JO JUs)Xa 93 01 A[UO ‘S)9SSE XB) PILIaJop pastudooar sey Aueduo)
9] ‘pasI[eal 8 UBD S)9SSE XB) PaLIdJop [ons [OIym JSUleSe s[qe[IBAR 8¢ P[NOM SWIODUI S{qEXE]} 91NN JUSIDJNS J2Y] AJUIEII80UN S[BUOSED] JO 90UISE 8] U] :910N

S19SSE XEB) PaJJIJIp [BI10],

€L ELT 18 1h1 SSO ssaulsng pue UoIjeIddIda( paqiosqeun
€L €CT e 1br SOQI[IqeI] XB] PIJIISJOP [LI0L
€L ECT [Eta juowdinbs pue jueld ‘Auadoig
10T Yoae\ 1S 6roz
8 HreN YoIeAl 1€

(39u) senIIqel] Xe] paLIajed (9)

(014

61

(po1e1s SSIMIBYI0 SSaTUN ‘SRR YNT UT STUNOUIR [[V)
6103 YOIBA 1€ PIPUS Jea4 3] JOJ SJUIUII]R]S [eIoUrUL] JO Jaed SUTuIo) PUE 0] PpIX3aUuUe S9]10N
TALINTT ALVATIId SY0LVIAdO TVNIINI AL ANV SAD VHANVHO



‘sonyea arej a1y} 03 [enbs ale sjunowe FulALIed oY) ‘ON[eA 1le] 1B PAINSEIW 218 1B S19SSE [BIOURUL 10,] Son[BA IIB]
Iy s1ewxoldde sjuatualels [RIOURUY 913} U pasSIUZ00ad Sjunoure Sulf11ed sy} 18y} s19pisuod Aueduwo)) sy} ‘O[qe1 9A0QR 31} Ul PoUOIIUSWL SINIIGRI[/SI9SSE [BIDUBUY 95013 10] 1dooxy

- - - SanIigel] [elouBul [B10],
€6 108 €§10¢€ (®)6 (SenInjew JUaLIND SUIPNOUL) SSUIMOLIOYG
sanIqery eoueury

60°011 60°011 - S19SSY [BIOURUILY [R10],
60°011 60°011 - (s Sa0UR[R( ASUOW UISIRJA
$19SSY [BIOURUL]

®oL € PaY] T [9A9] T [9A91 S310N 8T0T YOJIBJA TE PISO[ISTP Ik SaN[kA IIeJ Yo1YyMm I0J

ﬁ 1S0D PISILIOUIE JB PIINSEBIUL SINI[IGI] PUR S19SSE [RIoUBUL]

04’061 0L°'061 - SAIHIqer] [eIoURUL] [B10]
0L061 04061 - Q)6 (SenuIMBW JUALIND SUIPNOUL) SSUIMOLIOG
SeTHJIqETT] [BloURUL]

9¢°L3Y 9&:L31 - $19SSV [eIoueul [B10],
9t'ler 9t Lzy - (S Saoue[Rq ASUOW UISIBIA
S19SSV [BIOUBULY

[e10L € [Pa9] T [PAY] I [9A9] S310N 610T YOIBJA 1€ PISO[ISIP Ik SIN[BA JIRJ YIIYM I0J
1SOD PISILIOWE 1B PIINSEIUL SIQI[IGI] PUR SIISSE [RIDURUL]

*9[qe1 91 YIBSUISPUN SMO[[O] [249] Y0BS JO uoneue[dxs uy spiepuels SUIUNOIOR a1} Ul PaLIDSa1d SB S[9Ad] 931y} S} 01Ul SJUSIILIISUI [BIDUBUY S PIYISSB]D Sy Auedwiod

o1 ‘onfea 1re} SuTuIULIS]ap ul pasn syndurt at} Jo Ajiqeljp 91y} INOQE Uoed1pul ue apiacid 0], ‘SJUsUIa]IR)S [BIOURUL) S} Ul PASO[OSIP 918 Son[eA IIB] [OIYM 10] PUE }SOD PISILIOWER JB
paanseaw (q) pue Sn[BA 1] PAINSEIW pUER pasIuSodal (&) 1. 1Ry} SIUSIUILIISUI [EIOUBUL} Y] JO Sn[ea 18] oY} SUIUIULISISP Ul 9PBW S91BWISS Pue sjustuedpnl a1 suredxa uorjoas sy,

Aypaerary anfeA areq (1)

{Po1e.1S 9SIMIDYI0 SSOTUN ‘SIP{R] JYN] UI SYUNOe [[v)
6102 YoJarA 1€ pPOpUd 1834 91] 0] SJUdWI]e]S [BIoURUL] JO Lied SUTULIO] pUR 0] PaxXsuueR S310N
JALINIT ALVATId SYHOLVIddO TVNINYAL ANV S1D VAANVHD



‘pourad 3uniodal yoes Jo pus 3y} Je FUNSIXd SUONIIPUOD 19NIBW U0 Paseq A[UlBW a1 1By} Suonduinsse ayeul pue spoylawl
Jo A18LIBA B 109[9s 0] Juswadpn( s3t sesn Auedwo)) ay ], "Aue Ji ‘sonbiuyos] uoljenea Suisn PoUTULISISP ST 19)IBUI SAI}OE UE Ul PSPEI] J0U JI€ 1By} SJUSWIIISUI [RIOUBUI] JO aN[BA 18] 3],
sojewns9 Jueoytusis (q)

€S10€ €S6'10€ 04061 0L°061 sonIqer] [eueury [e10L

G108 €5 10¢ 0L 061 0L 061 . sgumolLiog

sanHyIqer] [euRUL]

60011 60°011 9¢°L31 9¢-La1 S19SSV [erouRUL] [R10]

60°011T 60°011 9t let 9¢'LeT . sedue[R( AQUOW UISIRIA

S19SSVY [RIOURUL]

onfeA areq sjunowry SurtALIe) anfeA e | sjunowry SurdLie) SoNJeA JIeJ YOIYM J0J 1SOD PISILIOUIE e PAINSEIUL SONHIQI] pUk $]13SSe [RIDUBUL]
8103 Yoae\ IS 6103 Yorey 1€

1S00 PIASILIOTE SB PAINSBIUL SANIII] PUR SIISSE [RIdRUL JO Injea aieq (1)

‘SISA[BUE MO[] 1SBI Pajunodsip Sulsn pauItiiIa)dp Sl SJUSWILIISUI [BIOUBULY SUTUIBWSI 9] JO anyea I} ay ], (¢
"SIUSWINIISUT JB[IWIS 10} sa30nb 1971eap 10 aoud jexrew pajonb jo asnayg, (1
19PN Ul SJUSINISUI [RIOURY dN[eA 0] pasn anbruysa) uonenyea syroads

an[ea JIBJ SUIULIDIIP 0] pasn anbruyoay uonenyeA (1)

“S11 NPaId umo s3urpnpoul ‘syndut s[qeasssqoun jo asn a1} 03 anp AYo1eIA1Y SN[BA I1B] 9] Ul SaN[eA
Iiej € [9AS] SB POIJISSED 91k A9Y [, "918I Summo110( /o1e1 SUIPUS] JUSLIND 1B PSIUNOISIP SMOJJ YSBD UO PISB( PAIB[NI[B) 819Mm SSUMOLI0J JUSLIND UOU PUR ASUOW UIdIeW JO San[ea I1ej 3
'} © [949] SE POlJISSE] 4L L q Ipus| % Y [ERtt Poseq pale[nofe L q p ! 3 [ea 1B 9Y L,

-1894 91[) BULIND T [9A9] PUR T [9A3] Ud9MID( SISJSUBI) OU IR 3IY],
"¢ [9AS] U1 PaPNIOUI ST JUSWINIISUL S} ‘BIep 1IBW S[(BAISSCO U0 paseq j0u st syndut Juedytudis 9y} Jo a10W 10 U0 J] :E [2437]
"% [9AS] Ul POPNOUL ST JUSWINLIISUL 913 9]qBAISSqO

9IB JUSTUNLIISUI UB dN[ea 11} 0} paiinbai syndur jueoyrusis (e J1 "serewn)ss o1j10ads- L113us uo o[qissod se o[131] St £[81 PUE BIRp J9IBW J[(BAISS]O JO 95N 31} ISTWIKBUIL YITYM anbluyds)
uonn[ea SUlSn PAUTULISIAP ST (SSAIIBALISP 19}UNO0I-3}-I9A0 ‘SPUOq papen) ‘o[duwexa 10]) 19)IBWL SAT}OR U Ul PSPEI} JOU dIk 18] SJUSWINIISUL [BIOUBUIJ JO SN[eA I18] oY ], i3 [9A]

-9oud paronb uisn paInsesw SIUSUINLIISUI [BIOUBUL] SOPNOUL AYOIBISIH T [949] : T [94d7]

(Po1e1S 9SIMISYIO0 SSoUN ‘SIPR] YN Ul SIUNOWE [[V)
6102 YOIBJA] IE POPUS JBdA 913 10] SJUdWdle]S [euRUl] JO Lied SUTuLIO] pue 0] PIXouue S3JON
TILIATIT JLVATId SHOLVAAdO TVNINIAL ANV S40 VEANVHD



‘¥ 910U Ul pasO(ISIP Sk $19SSE [RIOURUY JO SSB[O {0BS JO an[eA SULALIR) 9Y3 SI §T0T YoIBJA 1€ ‘PUR 610 YoIBAl TE 1€ SB YSLI 1IPald 01 aunsodxs wnuixew s Aueduwo)) ay,

‘pa1dasooe

ale suonnisul/syueq pajel Y31y A[UO ‘SUOHININISUL [RIDUBUY pUE sYUeq 104 ‘Aueduio)) o9y} AQ poIojiuoul A[9AI10R a1k $21ns0dXs JO UOIIBIIUOUOD PUR SHUWI[ Ppal1) -ddusliadxe 1sed pue Surjel
11pa1 ‘uonisod feroueuy Uo paseq £11ed-I91UNO0D Yo 10] 1S S1€ SIIWI] MS11 [enpIAIPU] "pPOONPA1 S1 ¥S1I 94} 90usYy pue uoijendal pood ‘s3urjel Jpaio pood saey Yorym so1ied-193unod Jo quind
SNOLIRA 1M JUSUIISIAUL JO O1[0j110d PayIsIaalp sey Aueduio)) sy, "Spury [eninul Ul S}uSUIISIAUI Pue SUeq Yim s}isodop wis) ‘sjuafealnbs yses pue yseo ur ainsodxs sutejuiew Aueduwo)) sy L,
spisodap YSDO puDn STUIUWNLISUL IDIDUDUL]

JudweSeurq YSTY UPaI) (1)

‘1940031 JO uoIe10adxa

S[QBUOSEI OU ST 9191} USYM JJO USYI1IM JIB SI9SSEB RIDUBULY "919 Suoed1]qo st 199w 03 A1iqe s,A1edia1unod ayl 03 sdueyp ‘Ajredislunod a1 Jo synsal 3unerado ay3 ut sedueyo ‘ssauisng ut
S93URYD 9SI9APER :SB ons uoleurIojul unjool-Sutpiemioy aarnroddns pue o[qBUOSEI SISPISUOD 3] "UOIHUS00a] [BIHNUI JO 918D JY1 1€ SE 1[1BJap JO YSU 9y} YIm a1ep Surprodal oy} 1. Se 19SS’ Y] Uo
SULLINY00 Y NEJSp B JO YS11 3} satedwoo Aueduo)) s} YSII IPalo Ul ISBaIJUT JUBIYIUSIS B ST 91213 JoyIRUm ssasse o], "'poltad Surirodal yoes 1noy3nolys siseq SuroSuo ue uo YSLI JPaId ul 9SeaIoul
JuBOYIUSIS B Udq SBY 2191} ISYJoyM PUER 19SSk JO UOIUS00al [entut uodn 3nejop jo A3l[iqeqoid ay3 s1opisuco Aueduiod s, "SI030.] 01lOU0I9-0I0BW 1910 pue saje1ado Auedulo) ay) yomym

Ul JUSWUOIIAUD SSaUISN( 9} SULISPISU0D A(Q POUTLLISISP ST }{NBJOp JO UOLIUYSP SIY [, "SABP OQT 1sed ul paaleoal juswided ou yim anp ised sAep 0g1 se poltad [nejap pauyep sey Aurdwo) ay L,

“SJUSWINLIISUI [RIOUBUY JOY}0 PUB UOTIIISUT [BIOUBULY PUE Yueq yim sysodep Surpnyour ‘sajialoe SUDUeUY S WO pue (S9[qealadal apel; Ajuewrid) senanoe Surjerodo
S]1 WOI] YSU 11palo 0] pasodxa st Auedwo)) sy ], *sso] [BIOUBUY € 01 SUIPES| POBIIU0D JSUIOISTD IO JUSWNIISUI [EIOUBUY € Jopun uonesjqo s31 199U j0U [[m AedIajunod 18yl Ysu 9y} SI Su1 1Ipa1)

sty HPID (V)

S93RI 159I93UL

Mrewypouaq SuIys pue SuLIojuoR SISA[RUR AJIALIISUDS S9jel 9[qRlIRA 1B SSULMOII0] ULIR-SU0] SIeL ISR ASLLIRTEN
(11pa10 YSed) sa13I[I0.] SSUMOLIO] s Aypinbry
pue saul] 3palo yueq Jo AIqe[ieay 15BJ9.10] MOTJ ysed SuI[[oy SaNIfIqeT] I910 pue sSuImolIog
}SU1 1pal
SjIwl| *1S00 POSTHIOWER 1B PRINSBIUl S19SSE [BURUY BHAPSLD
JipaIo pue 3sodop yueq Jo UOTIBOYISISAL] Sunjex yipato pur sisAfeus 3utedy ‘9[qeAleDal apel] ‘qudlealnba yseo pue yse)
U eURy U WRINSBITA] uroyy Surstre aansodxy st

* YSLI 9y} aSrurW A1IUS 9} MOY pPUe 0} pasodxa ST AA1IUs d1 YOIy NSLI JO $90Inos 31]] ule[dxa 910U SIYJ, "SI }Pa1d pue Ysi1 AIpmbi ysiu ‘1o rews sy} 03 asodxes Auedwod ay ],

INTAWHDVNVIA ASTH TVIONVNIA

1T

(Pa1R1S SSIMISUI0 SSI[UN ‘SIPR] YN UL SJUnoure [[y)
61032 Yo\ TS POPUD JBIA I3 J0] STUIUIA]BIS [BOURUL] JO 1Ied SUTULIO] pue 0] PIXSUUe S910N

THLIATT HLVATId SHOLVIAJO TVNIYAL ANV S0 VAANVHD



eLve 6102 YoaBJAl TE UO SIDUBMO[[V SSO]
(9og1) S9OUBMO[[B SSO] Ul S98URYD
6L°3S 8103 YIIJA 1€ U0 SIDUBMO[Y SSOT
So€c S9JUBMOJ[[E SSO[ Ul saduey)
€L6c £10% [Idy T U0 SIdDUBMO[[Y SSOT

SI[QBAIDDY PRI - UOISIA0Id SOOUBMO[[R SSO[ JO UONI[IDUCIIY (I1)

L1°60¢ £0°191 9¢L1 £e°gr 6£9 gcrll 84'88 Q10T U2IRA 1E
o1 191 eLYe ov'g 929 gb ST 0L'Se €50l 6103 OIBA 1€
sAep
|10, o€ uew 20 S9¢-0g81T 0gr1-06 06-09 09-0¢ sAep 0€-0

:SMO[[OJ S® ST QT0ZT YDIRA 1€ 3 6T0Z YoIeIAl 1€ 1 sk SUIPUR)SINO S}ISSE [RIOURULY JIYI0 PUE I[(BAISIAI SPR.L], JO JUNOUIE I,

(SURTe[ L1°60€ "$Y SI 810T YdIBIA TE) SIP{E[ OT'TQT *SY SI 6108 YoIRA 1€ 18 SB S19SSE [BlOUBUY] I9YI0 PUB ](BAISDSI 9PEI] U0 2Insodxa JPaId WNWIXeW [e10],
"(soe] 8E°€8 sy - 8108 YoIBIA 1E) SOB[ 9C68 'Sy JO aoueleq 9y} Jussaidal Auedwo) oyl Jo s1awolsno S doi ayy 6108 ‘1E YoIeA 18 S 90UR[R] SI[RAISIY 9P, 9431 JO

-sysodep A3j1an pue Asuow uidtew 03 Surureltad YSU PPaI JUBOYIUSIS OU 2J. 9I9Y ], "SO[qBAISII

9PRI] 10] SOUBMOT[R SSO[ 1Pald Pardadxe au3 91ndwod 01 19SSE [eueUly 9yl JO 931 Pa10adxa ) 1940 YSUI 1IPaID Y] JO JUAUISSISSE UR PUR UOTIRULIOJUT SUROO]-plemIoy pue Xujeuw uoispold

e sasn Auedwo) ay], ‘ured 10 ssof Juairedull SU} SSISSE 03 [9POW SSO JIpalo pajoadxa sasn Auedwo) a1} ‘601 SV puf jo uolldope JO JUNOII. U() "SSIUISTI JO SINOD [BULIOU S} UL SULID} JIPID
sjueld Auedwo) a1 YoIYm 0] SISWOISND JO SSOUIYIIOMIIPAID 9] SULIONUOW A[SNONUIIUOD pUe SHu] 31pa1d Surysijqelss ‘sjeaotdde 1ipato ySnoays Auedwo) sy Aq paSeurl Usaq Sey ySuI 1Upal)

“P9OIOAUT U83(] 10U 9ABY] N PIBA/2SNoyaTem a1} Je SULA] SI9UIEIUOD UO SWOIUI PINIDIR PUE SOULIOYINE JUSWUILA0S oY) yim sysodap LAjun
“ueq s Y3tm Asuoul UIS1eW JO SOSLIAWOD 3] "SO[QRAISISI PAINIISUN JIB SIOSSE [BIOURUY JSUF() ‘SI9UWIOISND WO} PILIES SRUIASL WOL} PIALISP I8 PUE PaIndasun A eord4} ale sajqealadal apel],

$19SSY ]D1UDUY,] L3Y]0 PUD S$I]QDAIIIIL IPD.L],

610 YoIBA] T POPUD 1834 31f] J0] SHudIdIe]S [RIdURUL] Jo 1ied SUMIo) pue 0] paxXauue SIJON
I LINTT ALVATId SYOLVIIdO TVNINYAL ANV S0 VIANVHO



-o1xd ut 98ueyo 0} pesodxa ST YoIym JUSIUNLISUL [BIoUBUY AUE 3ABY JOU $90p Auedwo)

MSTH 2011d ()

AJ1JUS 9] UO MSLI 1S9191UI OU ST 2191} ‘SULMO1I0q 9181 S[qBLIBA AUE 94RY 10U Op Auedwiod oy} sV

oS 10€ 04061 sSummoiiog rer1oJ,
05 10¢ 04061 s3umoliog a1ey poxLi
8102 YoaeA €| 6103 yoaep 1€ saenonaed
*smo710] se a1e poured Suntodal syj Jo pus a1} 1k seSueYD 91kl 1S9191Ul 0] SUMO0110q S Auedurod ay3 jo aansodxs sy,
aansodxa YSLI 91ey 1S9I91U] (B)
"SUI 91kl 1S9191Ul MO} yseo 03 dnoas oy asodxa yoiym ‘sajel s[qeLIeA Jim SSULIOMMO(Q ULISI-ZUO] WLOL) SISLIB HSLI J1el 1s31aiul urew s Auedwo) sy,
MSLI 1Y IR (D)
8599¢ Lrger &Ly 149§ LE L S 16 SONI[IqRI] SAQBALIIP UON [el10],
Tl - - - - zl1 SaUI{IqeT] [BIOURUL 19Y1)
0¢'e9 - - - - 0€€9 soqeded ape1],
0S'10¢€ FAN N TSL9 1495 LS LT €L92 (senjLImyeul JUSLIND SUIpnoul) SSULMOIIOT
S10T YoIey 1€

SIBIA S SIBak g Jruowt
[fe1o], puE z woomidg| pue T wLdMIDY SIB3A T 0] SYQUOW 9| SyYjluow g 0} syjuow £ £ wey sso SONI[IqeI] [EOUBUL JO SSLINBW [BNJORIIUO)
L16/3 85°€9 09'6S Y62 €6-61 PGP SONI[I]RI] 9ANBALIOP UON [B10],
el - - - - gLt SaU[IqRr] [elouRUL] I9UY1Q
GL 98 - - - - SL98 so[qeded spei,
04061 85€9 0965 Y6°Le €g-€1 90°9% (senjLImjeu JuaLIND FuIpnour) s3umoliog
6103 YoIey IS

sxeak § BB CEY uout
=10, pue z usomiaog| pue I wvemdg SIBAA T 0] SYJUOW 9| SYIUOU 9 0] SYluow & £ uey sso SONI[IgeIf [BIOUBUL] JO SORLIN)EW [BNOBIIUO)

TT ULYIM S0P SoUe[eg "91Ep }99YSIS0UL[E] 91 JB SB SMOJJ SBD PaIunodsipun poaise A[[enjoeIiuod uo paseq saljiqel] [eoueuy s,Aueduiod 9y} JO SISA[eUe AJLINTeW oy} SMOYS 9]qe} SUMO[[o} 9y L

6103 oI\ TE PIPUS JBa4 9Y] I0] SHILUIdlR]S [RIoURUL] JO 1aed SUruLIo] pue 0] poxauue S910N
JHLIATT HLVATId SHOLVIAdO TVNINYAL ANV SA3 VAANVHO

SONIMIqEI] [PIOUBUY JO SANLIMIBIAL (1)

"aNP UdYM SITIJICRI] SH 1991 0] AIpInbI] 1USIOLINS 9ABY SABRMIR
1M 11 1Ry} ‘oqissod se 1ejy se ‘Sulinsua AqQ ySH AIpnbi| sy seSeuew Auedwo)) sy ], 'anp 2W009q 433 st suoned[qo [elourUy SH 399w 01 9[qe 3q 10U [[m Auedwo)) syl 1ey] }SLI ay] ST ¥su Aypmbry

YSTY Anpinbry (9)




< A[[eUOTIUSIUL YUB[(] YOT U9aq SBY MO[aq 3okdS o], >

-a1n3ons [eydeo syt oSeuew 03 [e3ided U0 WINIDI 9} SIOHUOW OS[e JuswSeusw oy ],

‘sjuswaaISe JuUBUY JUBIYIUSLS ST JO Aue ul

SJUBUSAOD [BloURUY 0] 193[qns jou st Auedwiod ‘a1njonls [eided syt ‘isnlpe A1essadau Jt 1o ‘urejurews o} I1aplo ut sdais ajeurdordde ayey [[m Auedwod 9y, "ssauisnq sit Jo §imouas pue juswdojaasp
2InIng UrelsnNs 0} pur IUIPYUOD JONILU PUE SIOHPAID “103SIAUL UTRIUIEW O SB 0S £11nbd [8303 U0 SNO0J B 3lm 21n3onais [eided uols pue s[qels e urejutew o1 st Ao1jod s Aueduwiod sy,

"S91BYS MBU INSSI IO SI9p[oyaieys 03 jeyded unial ‘s1apjoyaleys 0} pred SpUSPIAIP JO JUNOUTE 31} ISN[pe Aew

Auedwmod a3 ‘91nionns [eyides oy 1snlpe Jo urerureu 03 19pIo UJ "s1osse SUILISpUN Y3 JO SOUISLISIOBIBYD NSLI AU} PUB SUOIIPUOD JIIOU0? ul safuetd Jo 1ySi[ ut a1nonns [eded a11 a8eusw
pue ysul 01 uonprodoad ur [ejided Jo Junowre S} IOPISUOI I "SPIDU ABP-0)-Ap PUE J183]113S S}1 J99W 0] JOPIO UI SIUIWIR £3Y Jo souereq etidoidde a3 Jo Juowaspn( s, jusradeurul UO paseq St
Auedwod 813 Jo 9InIONIS [BIIdED SY T, "SISP[OYAIRYS INO 0] SUINIal 9s1undo 0} pue UIedU0d 3UloS B SE aNURU0D 01 AH[Iqe s} pIendajes 01 Se 0s AuUatdLga [e3ides st sadeuewr 03 wre Auedurod ay ],

‘rendes axeys pue jgyoid pauleIdl Sopnjoul 199Ys 9IUR[R] Y} UT UMOYS sk A1Inba [ejo],
:rendes pageuew aq 03 309YS Jdueey SN Jo syusuoduwrod Sumoroy 243 s1apisuod Auedwos ayJ,,

INJINHIOVNVIATVLIAVD 29

6103 YoIeJAl TE pOpus Ie3a4 913 10] SjudwIalel§ [eroueury jo 1red Sururioy pue 0} paxauue s3jON
JILINIT ALVATRId SHOLVIHdO TVNIAYHAL ANV SAD0 VAANVHD



CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

23 SEGMENT INFORMATION:
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the company. The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has becn identified as the Managing Divector of the company. The
company has identified one reportable segment “Container Freight Station” i.e. based on the information reviewed by CODM. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results,
total carrying amount of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of charge for depreciation
during the year is as reflected in the Financial Statement as of and for the ycar ended 31 March 2018.

(a) Description of segments and principal activities

The Company is engaged in business of Container Ireight Station. “Container Freight Station” segment includes common user facilities located at various sea ports in India,
offering services for handling (including related transport), temporary storage of import / export laden and empty containers and cargo carried under customs control.

(b) Segment revenue
The company operates as a single segment. The seginent revenue is measured in the same way as in the statement of profit or loss

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Segment Revenue from Total Revenue from Total
external segment external segment
customers revenue customers revenue
Container Freight Station 885.61 885.61 818.90 818.90
Total Segment revenue 885.61 885.61 818.90 818.90

The company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers is
shown in the table below.

Revenue from customers 31 March 2019 |31 March 2018
India 885.61 818.90
Outside India N

Total 885.61 818.90

The amount of its non-current assets broken down by location of the customers is shown in the table below.

Non-current assets* - 31 March 2019 |31 March 2018
India 2,042.51 2,194.02
Outside India _ C
Total 2,042.51 2,194.02

*Other than deferred tax assets

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Number of Customers from who Revenue is more than 10% of total revenue 4 1

24 Related party transactions

24(a) Holding Company
The Company is controlled by the following entity:

Name Type Place of 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
incorporation
GATEWAY DISTRIPARKS Immediate and India 100% 100%
LIMITED Ultimate parent
entity

24(b) Transactions with related partics

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nature of Transaction Holding Holding
Company Company

Issue of Equity Share Capital - 100.00

Loans to/from related parties
No loan has been given/ received to/ from any related parties.

24(c )Directors of the Company
(i) Executive Directors
Mr. Prem Kishan Dass Gupta (Chairman and Managing Director)

(ii) Independent and Non-Executive Directors
Mr Shabbir Hakimuddin Hassanbhai
Mr. Bhaskar Avula Reddy




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

25

(1)

(i)

26

CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

The company had contingent liabilities at March 31, 2019 in respect of the following:

(Rs . in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2019

As at March 31,
2018

Bank Guarantees and Continuity Bonds executed in favour of The President of India through the Commissioners
of Excise and Customs

1,576.80

2,648.00

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: Nil (31 March 2018: Nil)

There are nuinerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated 28th February, 2019 on Provident
Fund (PF) on the inclusion of allowances for the purpose of PT contribution as well as its applicability of effective date. The Company

is evaluating and seeking legal inputs regarding various interpretative issues and its impact.
COMMITMENTS:

a) Capital Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account Nil (31 March 2018- Nil)

< The space below has been left blank intentionally




CHANDRA CFS AND TERMINAL OPERATORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic/
diluted earnings per share (63.01) (96.25)
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 8 8
basic/ diluted earnings per share ( in Lakhs ) 35-64 3594
Total basic/ diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the
company / P iy (1.76) (2.69)

28 DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ETERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been relied
upon by the auditors. According to such identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development (MSMED) Act, 2006’ are as follows:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier
- Principal amount Nil Nil
- Interest thereon Nil Nil
ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section Nil Nil

18, along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day.
iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay Nil Nil
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under this act.
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. Nil Nil
v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable Nil Nil
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small investor.

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the
Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED.
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30

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Collateral against borrowings

Vehicle (trailers) acquired from vehicle loan are pledged as security against debt facilities froin the lender. For carrying amount of assets pledged as seeurity refer note 9(a).

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of Financial Statements

Standards issued but not yet effective:

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The
Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 amending the following
standard:

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12
months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessce will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remcasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.The Company intends to adopt these standards
from 1 April 2019.Ind AS 116 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under Ind AS 17.

Transition to Ind AS 116

The Company is proposing to use the ‘Modified Retrospective Approach’ for transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained
earnings, on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively
adjusted. The Company has elected certain available practical expedients on transition.

The company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is being evaluated.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.LLP Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Chandra CFS and Terminal
Operators Pvt Ltd.

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Vishal Sharn;a Prem Kishan Dass Gupta habbir Hassanbhai

Partner Chairman Director
Membership No.: 96766 DIN: 00011670 ) DIN: 00268133
. Kumar ) Kalia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2019



